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GFO-22-607
Light-Duty Vehicle and Multi-Use Hydrogen Refueling Infrastructure
Addendum 3
January 24, 2023

The purpose of this addendum to GFO-22-607 is to amend the Questions and Answers document to add answers to questions submitted after the question submission deadline. These additions are Q&A 23, 24, 25, 26, and 27. Added language appears in bold underline, and deleted language appears in strikethrough and within square brackets.

Questions and Answers, Pages 7–10

Q23.	Is property in escrow adequate documentation of site control for Critical Milestone #2?

A23.	Yes. If an Applicant is proposing to purchase the property on which it proposes to build a station instead of leasing the property, then having the property in escrow to purchase the property is adequate documentation of site control for Critical Milestone #2.

Q24.	Is submitting multiple sites for the Multi-Use Hydrogen Refueling Infrastructure Competition allowed?

A24.	Yes. Solicitation Manual Section I.H.2. says “Projects may be composed of one or more multi-use hydrogen refueling stations that serve multiple uses … The per station maximum award amount for a multi-use hydrogen refueling station is $3 million.” As indicated in Solicitation Manual Section I.I., an Applicant may only submit one application to the Multi-Use Hydrogen Refueling Infrastructure Competition. Therefore, an Applicant’s one application (one project) to the Multi-Use Hydrogen Refueling Infrastructure Competition could include one or more multi-use hydrogen refueling stations and have a maximum award of $3 million. An entity can submit one application and also be a subrecipient or vendor to another Applicant’s application.

Q25.	Solicitation Manual Section I.H.1. states that Light-Duty Vehicle Hydrogen Refueling Infrastructure Competition projects may be composed of four or more fueling stations, with the per station maximum award at $1 million. Does this mean we need 4 stations and 4 applications in order to achieve the minimum award of $4 million, or does this mean we are able to apply once for 4 stations to achieve the minimum award of $4 million under one project? 

A25.	The latter statement is correct, all of the stations to be included in an Applicant’s Light-Duty Vehicle Hydrogen Refueling Infrastructure Competition project should be submitted in a single application to that competition. See the answers to questions #8 and #12 in this document for related information. Reviewing Attachment 1a (GFO-22-607 Application Form for Light-Duty Vehicle Hydrogen Refueling Infrastructure Competition) and Attachment 1b (GFO-22-607 Application Form for Multi-Use Hydrogen Refueling Infrastructure Competition) should provide some clarity on how to organize stations within each competition.

Q26.	Can we apply for one multi-use and one light-duty station at the same, or contiguous, sites?

A26.	A multi-use hydrogen refueling station shall serve multiple uses, including light-duty fuel cell electric vehicles in one public fueling area and fuel cell electric trucks or buses in a separate fueling area (Solicitation Manual Section I.H.2). A multi-use station must have a public light-duty vehicle fueling component, but that light-duty vehicle fueling component is considered part of the multi-use station, not a separate light-duty vehicle station. Therefore, there is no need to count that light-duty fueling component as a separate station under the Light-Duty Vehicle Hydrogen Refueling Infrastructure Competition unless an Applicant wants the CEC to evaluate the same location for both competitions, with the intention of deciding to build the station as either a light-duty station or a multi-use station based on the results of the solicitation.

Q27.	If we are proposing four light-duty stations, two of which would also be multi-use stations serving heavy-duty vehicles, is it possible to include within the four-station application the supplemental information and documentation for the heavy-duty equipment at two of the stations? In other words, do we have to prepare a separate application for the two multi-use stations, while also preparing an application for the four light-duty stations?

A27.	Applicants should submit hydrogen refueling station projects to the competition under which they want to be considered for funding. From the information provided, and assuming all competition requirements are met, an Applicant could submit one application to the Multi-Use Hydrogen Refueling Infrastructure Competition that includes two multi-use stations for a maximum award of $3 million (Solicitation Manual Section I.H.2). If the Applicant has two other, light-duty vehicle hydrogen refueling stations planned, those two stations by themselves do not meet the minimum award requirements for the Light-Duty Vehicle Hydrogen Refueling Infrastructure Competition and would need to be combined with at least two other light-duty hydrogen refueling stations for a $4 million funding request to meet the minimum requirement (Solicitation Manual Section I.H.1).

Conversely, an Applicant could submit all four stations (two serving only light-duty vehicles and two serving light- and heavy-duty vehicles) to the Light-Duty Vehicle Hydrogen Refueling Infrastructure Competition to meet the minimum award requirement. The two stations with a heavy-duty fueling component would be subject to the $1 million maximum grant per station under the Light-Duty Vehicle Hydrogen Refueling Infrastructure Competition (Solicitation Manual Section I.H.1).

An Applicant can submit one application to each competition (Solicitation Manual Section I.I), but if any stations in the two applications overlap, those stations will not be funded twice. For example, one multi-use station cannot have the light-duty component of the station funded under the Light-Duty Vehicle Hydrogen Refueling Infrastructure Competition and the heavy-duty component of the station funded under the Multi-Use Hydrogen Refueling Infrastructure Competition. The Multi-Use Hydrogen Refueling Infrastructure Competition projects shall include both the light-duty and heavy-duty components of a station.


Natalie Johnson,
Commission Agreement Officer
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